
 

 



LECC
Law Enforcement
Conduct Commission

Office of Commissioner for Integrity

50799/632
30 November 2020

The Hon John Ajaka MLC
President
Legislative Council
Parliament House
SYDNEY NSW 2000

The Hon Jonathan O’Dea MP
Speaker
Legislative Assembly
Parliament House
SYDNEY NSW 2000

Dear Mr President and Mr Speaker

In accordance with section 132(3) of the Law Enforcement Conduct Commission
Act 2016 (the Act), the Commission hereby furnishes to you a Report in relation
to its investigation in Operation Coolum.

Pursuant to section 142(2) of the Act, I recommend that this Report be made
public immediately.

You will note that the Report has identified an Affected Person with the
pseudonym BLQ. The Commission has been put on notice by the lawyer who
acted on behalf of BLQ during private examinations held by the Commission that
he intends submitting a letter to the President of the Legislative Council, the
Speaker of the Legislative Assembly, the relevant Minister and the NSW
Commissioner of Police, complaining that during the examination process and
report preparation, his client was denied procedural fairness and that he denies
the allegations made against him. The letter further complains that there is no
appeal avenue which BLQ can avail himself of in order to 'clear his name’ and
therefore urges that legislation be introduced to reform the legislation governing
the Commission as it is ‘materially unfair and it requires review’.

The lawyers representing BLQ are entitled to voice their opinion in regard to the
operation of the Commission and the investigation conducted into their client.
However, the Commission considers that in so doing, it is of paramount
importance that Parliament is not misled as to the manner in which the
investigation was conducted, or the redress available to a party who believes he
or she has been aggrieved by this process.

The proposed correspondence provided to the Commission by BLQ’s lawyer
asserts his client had no right of appeal, and by inference, that they did not seek a
legal remedy. This is not correct. BLQ, pursued two distinct avenues of redress.

Upon being informed the Commission proposed presenting its final report to
Parliament on 21 July 2020, BLQ lodged a complaint with the Inspector of the
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Law Enforcement Conduct Commission, the Hon Terry Buddin SC (the Inspector).
Upon being so informed, the Commission agreed to defer submitting its report to
Parliament, pending the outcome of the Inspector’s investigation.

In the complaint, the lawyers representing BLQ asserted that their client had
been denied procedural fairness based upon twelve grounds.

The Inspector is empowered under s 122 of the Law Enforcement Conduct
Commission Act 2016 NSW, to investigate conduct amounting to 'agency
maladministration’ on the part of the Commission, or 'officer misconduct’ or
'officer maladministration’ on the part of officers of the Commission.

On 7 October 2020 following his investigation, the Inspector released his
response in which he dismissed all twelve grounds relied upon by the lawyers for
BLQ in support of the complaint that BLQ had been denied procedural fairness. A
copy of the Inspector’s response can be obtained directly from the office of the
Inspector.

With the Inspector’s investigation completed, the Commission notified the
lawyers for BLQ that it intended presenting its report to Parliament on
19 October 2020. In response, on 16 October 2020, BLQ’s lawyers lodged in the
Supreme Court of New South Wales, a summons seeking an injunction restraining
the Commission from presenting its report to Parliament. In support of the
summons an affidavit was filed, alleging that in the course of its investigation
BLQ had been denied procedural fairness and that the Commission’s report was
prejudicial to him. The Commission vacated this second date before the
Parliament. Five days later the summons was discontinued, with the Commission
agreeing to minimal changes to its report of no substance, to further anonymize
BLQ, but did not alter its findings or recommendations.

In considering correspondence from BLQ’s lawyers, the Commission would like it
noted as a matter of public record that BLQ exercised his legal right in two
forums to seek redress for what he considered to have been a denial by the
Commission to afford him procedural fairness in the course of its investigation.
Once before the Inspector of the Commission which was rejected, and
subsequently before the Supreme Court where he withdrew his application for
relief.

Yours sincerely,

The Hon Lea Drake
Commissioner for Integrity

Level 3, 111 Elizabeth Street, Sydney NSW 2000
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